
 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE - BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

Tuesday, October 3, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

AGENDA 

 

APPROVAL OF SEPTEMBER MINUTES 

 

FINANCIAL 

• YTD Budget Report attached 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

• See August minutes  

• Election Inspector assignment letters for Early Voting and Election Day (165) 

• Military/UOCAVA absentees sent September 22nd 

• Absentee Ballots Permanent and Civilian mailed September 29th  (683) 

• BOE Facebook page launched Sept. 28th, with new VoteTioga Logo 

• Cease and Desist Order to NY Citizens’ Audit by Office of Attorney General 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

• Research on how to pay and train election inspectors continues – new legislation 

• AED training and Narcan training for staff 

• Upcoming visits to Elderwood facility for absentee ballots 

• Early Voting begins October 28th through November 5th 

• Polling site change as Richford Town Hall has moved – notice postcards to voters 

 

PERSONNEL 

• Resignation of Jean Flynn, Election Worker PT  9/11/2023, Backfill request filed 

• Retirement Commissioner Layman 12/2/2023 

• Kelly Johnson Commissioner 12/3/2023 

• Deputy to begin 12/6/2023 

 

RESOLUTION 

J35 – Amend Resolution No. 246-23 and Resolution No. 247-23 Regarding Extension of Grant Terms 

ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE - BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

Tuesday, September 5, 2023 

10:30 a.m. 

MINUTES 

 

ATTENDEES 

Legislators D. Mullen, W.J. Brown, R. Ciotoli, and W. Standinger;  

Commissioners V. L. Layman and J. Wahls 

Guests: Peter DeWind (County Attorney), Cathy Haskell (Legislative Clerk), Martha 

Sauerbrey (Legislative Chair) 

 

APPROVAL OF JUNE AND AUGUST MINUTES 

Motion by Legislator Brown, second by Legislator Ciotoli, all in favor, carried. 

 

FINANCIAL 

Year-to-date Budget Report was presented. No discussion. 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

See June, August minutes and July report. 

Election Inspector Training was completed in August, with a total of 177 trained. 

Commissioner Wahls and Deputy Commissioner Johnson attended NYS Election 

Commissioners’ Association Summer Training Conference in Niagara Falls August 15-18th. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

A joint meeting was held on August 23, among the County Attorney, Board of Elections, 

Personnel, and Treasurer, to plan out how to pay and train election inspectors beginning 

in 2024, in order to comply with IRS regulations and mandatory training requirements. 

Election Inspector assignments for the 2023 general election are in progress, and letters 

are expected to be mailed out by the end of September.  

Logic and accuracy testing of voting machines to be used in the general election 

scheduled for September 13th. 

Military/UOCAVA ballots will be sent by September 22nd. 

Rolling canvass of absentee ballots received begins as early as September 28th when 

absentee ballots are checked by a bipartisan team and prepared for scanning. 



 

 

Commissioner Layman will be retiring on December 1st. Succession planning and training 

is under way for Deputy Johnson to step into the commissioner role. 

Board of Elections Facebook page expected to launch this month and will be 

maintained by the deputy commissioners. 

A press release by the NYS Board of Elections on individuals impersonating county 

election officials in New York State was presented. It was noted that such impersonation is 

a crime. 

 

RESOLUTIONS / PROCLAMATIONS - none 

Meeting adjourned. 



Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 09/29/2023 11:20
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      1

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 09

ACCOUNTS FOR:                                 ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
A        General Fund                          APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

A1450 Elections                           

A1450 412910  Election Fees                     -3,000           0      -3,000      -5,380.57            .00       2,380.57  179.4%
A1450 439060  State Aid-Election                     0     -22,351     -22,351            .00            .00     -22,350.92     .0%*
A1450 510010  Full Time                        190,158           0     190,158     135,375.10            .00      54,782.90   71.2%
A1450 510020  Part Time/Temporar               129,138      -5,000     124,138      51,021.44            .00      73,116.56   41.1%
A1450 510030  Overtime Pay Only                      0       5,000       5,000       2,186.73            .00       2,813.27   43.7%
A1450 520090  Computer                           2,000           0       2,000          16.27         406.60       1,577.13   21.1%
A1450 520130  Equipment (Not Car                 5,000           0       5,000       2,271.73            .00       2,728.27   45.4%
A1450 530551  Maintenance in Lie                27,223           0      27,223      22,239.00            .00       4,984.00   81.7%
A1450 540010  Advertising                        2,000           0       2,000         157.43            .00       1,842.57    7.9%
A1450 540143  Election Inspector                85,000           0      85,000       2,804.00            .00      82,196.00    3.3%
A1450 540143 EV Election Inspect                15,000           0      15,000       4,140.00            .00      10,860.00   27.6%
A1450 540320  Leased/Service Equ                 5,500           0       5,500       1,307.77            .00       4,192.23   23.8%
A1450 540390  Mileage Expense                      900           0         900         215.45            .00         684.55   23.9%
A1450 540420  Office Supplies                    3,000           0       3,000         497.52            .00       2,502.48   16.6%
A1450 540480  Postage                           18,000           0      18,000       8,441.66            .00       9,558.34   46.9%
A1450 540485  Printing/Paper                     1,500           0       1,500         216.38            .00       1,283.62   14.4%
A1450 540490  Election Expense                  40,500      22,148      62,648       8,828.22            .00      53,820.16   14.1%
A1450 540550  Rent                               3,000           0       3,000            .00            .00       3,000.00     .0%
A1450 540560  Repairs                                0         203         203         202.54            .00            .00  100.0%
A1450 540620  Software Expense                  63,700           0      63,700      51,865.00            .00      11,835.00   81.4%
A1450 540733  Training/All Other                 8,700           0       8,700       5,525.29            .00       3,174.71   63.5%
A1450 581088  State Retirement F                20,662           0      20,662      27,366.64            .00      -6,704.44  132.4%*
A1450 583088  Social Security Fr                17,882           0      17,882      14,126.34            .00       3,755.82   79.0%
A1450 584088  Workers Compensati                 7,347           0       7,347       7,982.11            .00        -635.41  108.6%*
A1450 585088  Unemployment Insur                     0       3,066       3,066       3,066.00            .00            .00  100.0%
A1450 585588  Disability Insuran                   271           0         271         200.97            .00          70.47   74.0%
A1450 586088  Health Insurance F                75,034           0      75,034      67,654.88            .00       7,379.00   90.2%
A1450 588988  Eap Fringe                            88           0          88          99.43            .00         -11.63  113.2%*

     TOTAL Elections                           718,603       3,066     721,669     412,427.33         406.60     308,835.25   57.2%

     TOTAL General Fund                        718,603       3,066     721,669     412,427.33         406.60     308,835.25   57.2%

                           TOTAL REVENUES       -3,000     -22,351     -25,351      -5,380.57            .00     -19,970.35
                           TOTAL EXPENSES      721,603      25,417     747,020     417,807.90         406.60     328,805.60

https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=t2BYMakVK8m1kH%2Fr2Mr4Wrg3xkj01AMSOQGB4Bol5X5wQTmUGCkSOeICA18Yd6pG
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=Yj%2B7eU%2BIYmSyjTzdzSDgzC9rhaj6GzX7kqA55BvQcq2PC9VSQ5ukhjkkq0cmBZvp
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=2I5NO7DIxjDiycDluIGZdfYJjjZWtOE0%2BzbJP0XiXNsPSpiknNIJjacBibGviiYG
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wrpp%2BT0x50DBjMRzlF%2BhwtDdBYQQYOAEiHo9FlcoKgnN50pOdLlrR2oTvzWmqXEN
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=dORzg8jIiEekw%2FI5LDzK8rk008nW0lkrgmHeEZQ%2BKa12flIfcdvFFgJG%2B0d%2Fto4n
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=qGjDOemJYbczo5AT35o31tti1y1Qb2Z1vO6xP7Bm90D%2BoSt5vxPJVg5ckaI560X0
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=4FheKIdYTg27feNhF6tSqIO6u3BIHrSM2S0F9k6EnAPO%2FDRrwLEMSrFAq9B7KTY2
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=FJ%2Bhct2y%2BBPYT0%2FKuVvEc%2B099GG%2FJ8oloSe7j32piwxlgAbM82wcJuNMn0VfvcwG
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=pLXIMs8uYjKLqQaO5G19q7Dxixz5WQdbzF5hvaQ%2BGAWF6dHCOKMy7Nzxf9RZx6LZ
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OEF%2BEpigLA9vUW92u0ZQ1NDqvJfsClAFl7RNau8NkhCbB90%2BiOocm9MkamUlmVs1
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ei3HdIhhrNZgrlvHgvzUYpMkaMiVCQ0nC2RinZVImGSgAp%2FKlc73vSoANShJ4aAB
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5xxpa%2BdjNq%2BcpFmG1WHYHDVmc9BQ7iAUx8OzxtmhkcAamzuhrzFUMvPaSAgbVjBp
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=wFuCfHH7nww%2B9R7UaxwGTSUZkL0XZPpMo75kFCpr6ENGXBw6vbO6l3sbAZHnalMm
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=iMoQJjQ3yVlD9n9vAMx9qN6WQKlYBxQmxjmI2ImgdOYznKPiPWgaGH%2BiS8y%2BwyPb
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=uRiW2SOEUTfsmWzKVTRZvjWhvL2rJYTHscxZ8t1jEqx9QaYPMUM2I48yggzsvoXF
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=edtgZxtMlmiyfud3QAHnyV0dccovABMlmeWGf3hLzpKvup4o2xGTdhLe4KhgFSYJ
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2BsQgXIcRUai2L5gvxIAWzBFZrPEd2ReTXR9sLueswFg1OaaL91ZXBUOGSm3QYOLm
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=5Qf9v6zyYEPhtaCi9dLJXq7QMiUtr5i0n%2Fohy35vdeG7NEd2vHMfDF%2BMcIdmZXQV
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=NtWYA1x71xnABW4f0tnVdBjXEH3FwVidg01iRaKhsjd092IbAvKzvtJbIvrngEHf
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=ydQk2FLIGR%2BkkAmoZVJ%2BWRRfGa9QhP8%2F4k0E5b5M1g5izx23QrWwu2QGgHdpxGSa
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=BIqphPdIxmwK2WiYwNDDynlf4aYnzTCvVT%2BGhFKcDxY%2FRiJi%2FC9raZD5ght5KnZ%2F
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=RYpLeyK22UXOaF4dXk2QUGKLgYRIVPx%2FD5Q6fdn9zZS5lyxvkJLAHgVy9qd%2FJJr7
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=3ivn8SZp1TNPs4wShHerW4PBv4efUfKEG8UO7DGfTZcciYpbHQX21NY%2FcC%2F0oobb
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=OSIvYal%2FjqK4WfnGHrNknLdo22c8pyQATccmHs2Rj6L6SkHoDj4CHfmAPr8qv%2FpX
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=23aLF6f0B0lm6KfwlFs9q27jArGFgT1YPbdzYmUN5KtzlkyIL2MKBBT7N75sxaKr
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=0eg9Nc47r2AQlTzOMLjuL0Nlqc1AmumVciNGocXsfECnb72gk0bgoSXHBozOC3ZU
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=%2F3rChZO83Hm3z9ufr9XZQxPoGVB4BAtUmDvNpOVcyd4Vs6mMBYyAxN6bkozg739T
https://munisapp.co.tioga.ny.us/prod/munis/gas/app/ua/r/mugwc/glactinq?Arg=--mutoken&Arg=jGFCTjt8Vb0BTryHe7IjoEtIENRb0m6QntUKAWFX5%2FEDCyXzS5%2FzGFFSgxZ7oIKA


Tioga County
YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT

Report generated: 09/29/2023 11:20
User:             WahlsJ
Program ID:       glytdbud

Page      2

                                                                                                         

  FOR 2023 09

                                              ORIGINAL    TRANFRS/     REVISED                                    AVAILABLE    PCT
                                               APPROP     ADJSTMTS      BUDGET     YTD ACTUAL   ENCUMBRANCES        BUDGET    USE/COL

                              GRAND TOTAL      718,603       3,066     721,669     412,427.33         406.60     308,835.25   57.2%

                                          ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Wahls, James **                                           



 

 

New logo for Tioga County Board of Elections 







REFERRED TO:   ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES COMMITTEE 

FINANCE/LEGAL COMMITTEE 

      

RESOLUTION NO. -23 AMEND RESOLUTION NO. 246-23 AND 

RESOLUTION NO. 247-23 REGARDING  

EXTENSION OF GRANT TERMS 

BOARD OF ELECTIONS 

 

WHEREAS: The Tioga County Legislature adopted Resolution No. 246-23 and 

Resolution No. 247-23 on June 13, 2023, authorizing the appropriation and receipt 

of additional funds from the NYS Absentee Ballot Pre-Paid Postage Grant and NYS 

Technology Innovation and Election Resource (TIER) Grant, respectively; and  

 

WHEREAS: The grant term end date of the Absentee Pre-Paid Postage Grant was 

indicated as 12/31/2023, and that of the TIER Grant was indicated as 01/28/2024; 

and  

 

WHEREAS: The grant contracts were subsequently revised by the NYS Board of 

Elections at the direction of the NYS Office of General Services, resulting in an 

amended term end date of 03/31/2024 for each grant; therefore be it 

 

RESOLVED: That the term end dates listed in Resolutions 246-23 and 247-23 are 

amended to 03/31/2024; and be it further 

 

RESOLVED: That any available funds remaining of these grants on 12/31/2023 will 

be carried forward into 2024.  

 

  

 
 


